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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE 1s hereby given that the TWENTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of A.K.
SPINTEX LIMITED. will be held at its registered office at 14 K.M. Stone, Chittorgarh Road, Bilia
Kalan, BHILWARA-3110(1 on Wednesday, 30th September, 2015 at 11.00 A M. to transact the following
business

ORDINARY BUSINESS

i %

To recerve considers and adopis the audited statement of accounts of the Company lor the vear ended
31st March, 2015, together with reports of the | Yirectors and Auditor’s thercon,

To appoint a director in place of Shr Saurabh Chhabra (D 00488493) who retires by rotation and
being eligible offer himself for reappointment.

To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to
pass. with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolition:

“RESULVED THAT subject to the provision of section 139 and other applicable provision, if any,
ol the Companigs Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time Messrs
O.F Dad & Company, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 002330C) be and is hereby
appointed as the Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion this Annual peneral
Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the twenty-third Annual (eneral Mecting of the Company to
be held in the year 2017 (subject to ratification of their appoiniment al. every AGM held after this
AGM), at such remuneration plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling and living expenses, etc., as
may be mutually agreed between Board of Dircctors of the Company and the Auditor,”

Registered Office :
14" Km, Stone, Chittorgarh Road,

Bilia Kalan, Bilwara - 311 001. BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PLACE: BITILWARA ‘L YaEras =necl
DATE: 30.05.2M5 { P. C. CITHABRA)

MANAGING DIRECTOR
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I. A Mecmber entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to
appuint a proxy to attend and vote (on poll) instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company, The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be
deposited at the Company’s Repistered Office, duly completed and signed, not less than FORTY-
CIGHT HOURS before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companics, socicties,
etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable. A person can act as proxy
on behalf of Members not exceeding fiffy (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of
the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voling rights, then such
proxy shall not act ag a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. An Explanatory Statement on the business 10 be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

3, The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from
29.09.2015 to 30.09.2015 (both days inclusive).

4. Members/Proxies attending the meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report for
reference at the Meeting and also the Attendance Slips duly lilled in for attending the meeting.

5. Shareholders secking amy information with regard to Accounts are reyuested (o write to the
Company at Icast 7 days before the date of the meeting so as (o enable the management to keep the
information ready

. The Members are requested to:

a) Intimate changes, if any, in their registered addresses immediately.

b) Quote their ledger folio number in all their comrespondence.

¢} Hand over the enclosed attendance slip, duly signed in accordance with their specimen registered
with the Company for admission to the meeting place.

d) Bring their Annual Report and Attendance Slips with them at the AGM venue.

e} Send their Email address to us for prompt communication and update the same with their D.P. to
receive softcopy of the Armual Report of the Company.

+ The report on the Corporate Governance and Managemen Discussion and Analysis also form part to the

report of the Directors.

Members seeking any information are requested fo write to the Company by email at
akspintexi@umail.com af least 7 days before the date of the AGM (o enable the management to reply
appropriately at the AGM.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address and F — Mail ID to their
respective Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic share acconnts and to the Repistrar
and Share Transfer Agent of the Company at Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Lid., Beetal
House, 3™ floor, 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping ccuter, Near Dada [larsukhads Mandir, New
delhi-110062

Electronic copy of the Annual report is being sent to the members whosc cmail IDs are registered with
the Company/Depository Participants unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For
members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Annunal report s being sent
in the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Annual Report for FY 2014-15 will also available for downloading on
Company’s website www.akspintex.com,

Corporate Members intending (o send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General
Meeting needs to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives (o
attend and vote at the Mecting,




ix.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice arc open lor inspection by the members at
the registered oftice of the company on all working days, except Saturday, between 11:00 AM and 1:00
P.M up to the date ol the meeting.

Yo

ii,

hllg through electronic means

The e-voting period begins on Saturday September 26, 2015 from 10.00 AM. Upto 'I'nesday.
5.00 P.M, Septembar 29, 2015 During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares
cither in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of
08/08/2015, may cast their vote clectronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL
for voiing thereaficr.

The shareholders should log on o the e-voting website www evotingindia com during the voting
period.

iil.  Click on “Shareholdcrs”™ Lab.,

iv.

vi.

vii,

Now, seleet the “COMPANY NAME” from the drop dowa menu and olick on “SUBMIT™
Now Enter your User [D

a) For CIISL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP 11 followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

¢} Maombers holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company,

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

I you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and vored
on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

I you are 4 first time user follow the steps piven below;

| Kor Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Euter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits
ol the sequence number in the PAN Field.

¢ In case the sequence number is less than & digits enter the applicable number of
0's before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL

. letters, Eg. If your name is Ramesh Komar with sequence number 1 then enter

RA00000001 in the PAN Field.

| DOB Enter the Daic of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in (he company |

| records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mmfyyyy format.

| Diyidend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the
Bank Details | company records for the said demat account or folio.

* Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details
| are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member
| id/folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction

(v). !

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab,

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen,
However, menmbers holding sheres in demat form will now reach *Password Creation’ menu wherein
they arc required o mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
that tiis password is to be also used by the demal holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSI.




xii.

xiii.

xiv,

x¥vi

xvil.

xviii.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF IRECTOR

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share vour password with any other person and take
utmast care to keep vour password confidential,

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for c-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <company name=> on which vou choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will seg “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION™ and against the same the option
*YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and oprion NO implies that yvou dissent to the Resolution,

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After sclecting the resolubion you have deeided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayved. 10 vou wish to confirm vour vote, click on “OK”, else to change vour vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Onee you “CONFIRM™ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote,

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the nage
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enler the dotails as prompted by the svste,

Note for Institutional Shareholders:

» Institutional shareholders (ie other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} are required to log on to
https:/‘www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as corporates.

o A seanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk evolingiEiedstingdi

»  After receiving the login details they have to create a vser who would be able o link the
account{s) for which they wish 0 vote on, :

* The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk evotingi@cdslindia com and on approval of the
accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

= A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to venfy the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs™) and e-voting manunal available at www evotingindia co.in under help section
or write an email to helpdesk evotingi@edslindia.com

|
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MANAGING DIRECTOR

by G élﬂ__
(ASHI *H uunm %LRFL‘H&}
COMPANY SECRETARY




Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Industry Structure and development

Fabric Processing (Textile Industry) development continues to be the thrust area and the government is
committed to focus and spend on Textile industry development in the country. Large and long term
myestments and new global players are expected to enter the Fabric processing industry as there is huge
potential for the Textile industry development in the country. There are various factors which act as strong
. drivers for long term sustainable real estate demand in India such as:

Continued economic growth;
Trend change in clothing,
Young working population
Rising disposable income;
Increase Modernization:

Opportunities, Threat and Outlook

The Textile Scetor in India has undergone rapid changes in the past few vears. Bhilwara 1s known as textile
city due to infrastructure and enviromment fabric processing mdustry have good opportunity changes in
preference and choice of young generation also provide opportunity. New competitors have entered the core
area of our operations in recent times. The fight for the market share has intensified with growing
competition. This, combined with substantial increase in costs of inputs has neutralized the impact of
Government's positive policies for Textile sectors. Most of the new players, who have come in with the
support of large business groups. have the financial strength to susmain large scale investments. These
players continue to propel the competition with improved quality of products and services.

Product Wise Performance
AKSI. is one of the leading Proccss House for Processing of Polyester Fabric and Cotton Fabric in india,
The Company provides quality processing with complete satisfaction.
To improve the operational and financial performance the company has:
o Implemented various energy-savings mitiatives.
* Introduced new. high value techniques for fabric processing.

Risks and concerns

The company is continuously evaluating the risks of getting into arcas where it has no exposure carlicr, as
compared to the risk of continuing 1o operate in an overcrowded, matured market uniformity in the
regiatory environmen! concermng the [abric provessimg (Textle industry) also the avaitability of gualily
manpowet, market research models and reliable database on industry are concerns that need to be addressed
for attracting FDI inflows in the industry.

Compliance

The level of compliance is increasing day by day and any defaull can attract penal provisions, Your
company 15 regularly monitoring and reviews the changes in regulatory framework and also monitoring
its compliance mechanism sa as to ensure that instances of non-compliance do not occur,




Internal Control System

The Company has adequate internal contro! procedure and systems. Internal control system plays a great
role in achieving the targets of any vrganization. Your Company gives top priority to establish a capable
internal contro] system. The present mternal control system of the Company is capable of facing the
challenges and threats atising from the outside environment.

The Company's internal control system aims to ensure that:

# Laws and regulations are complied with;

*® The instructions and directions issued by the Board and Manapement are complied and implemented.

¢ The Company’s internal processes are functioning correctly, particularly those implicating the security
of its assets;

* Financial imformation is reliable and generally, contributes to the control over its activitics, to the
efficiency of its operations and 1o the efficient wtilization of its resources.
To prevent fraud, iregulanity, misappropriation of Company's resources and early detection thereof.
The miernal controls wre periodically reviewed by the Audit Comumnitiee tw enswre their elfectiveness and
adequacy.

Human Resources

The Company believes that the human capital is the key engine for its growth and competitiveness. It
continues to focus an HR practices, systems and people development initiatives that encourage continuons
learming on the job and merilovracy and which enhance the organization’'s capability. The Company’s
objective poing lorward would be to nurture and hamess core management teams and explore ontsourcing
which will enable us to enhance management bandwidth and focus In this direction we have already
successtully oulsourced our construction activities to “best-in-class™ contractors for all our current and
upcoming projects. The changing business scenario necessitates continuous development of employees in
terms of skills and competencies in line with the Company’s requitements.

Risk management

Risk management is the identification, assessment and wking pro-active measures to face the impact of
various risks. Risks may arise from uncertainty in financial markets, project failures, fegal liabilities, credit
risk, accidents, natural causes and disasters etc. The Company has adopted appropriate procedure and
policies to safepuard the company against business and other risk to miiigate its impact to the extent
possible. The Risk management plans & policies are periodically manitored, reviewed and evahiated and
updated from time to time.

Cautionary Statement

The Management Discussion and Analysis contains certain forward looking statements, These statements
pertain to the Company’s future business prospeets and business profitability, which are subject to a number
of risks and uncertaintics and the actual results could materially differ from the forward looking statements.
The nsks and uncertaintics relaling o these statements include, but are not limited to, risks and
uncertainties, fluctuations in camings, our ability to manage growth, competition, economic growth in India,
ability to attract and retain highly skilled professionals, time and cost over runs on contracts, govemment
policies and actions with respect o mvestments, Fiscal deficits, regwlation etc. and other factors which
cannol be anticipated.



DRAFT DIRE RS REPORT

Ta,
The Mentwers

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 21" Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2015,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FimamcialResults T 0149015| 0 20132014
Turnover 441920 3955,93
| Dﬁ:—mliug Prolit before mterest, depreciation & tax Al 421.25 S e
| Less: Interost - 173.80 164 94
' Profit Befure-De-];lrec:iatinn & Tax - 247.45 216.79
| Less : Depreciation N ' LS 2ia 165 83
| Profit Before tax EEER B TX
Less: Income Tax (Current) R 38.4] 10.40
Profit after tax — ey | 40.56
LESS: MAT Credit Entitlement ] R 16.71
| ADL: Deferred Tax (Curtent) [ Sl s 18.80
| Profit after provision for deferred fax i SRR L) 12.65
Add: Balance brought forward PRSI RIS 0N 47329
‘Balance earried fo Balance Sheet S 515.95

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

The Key highlights pertaining to the business of the company for the year 2014-15 and period subsequent
tiiere to have been given hereunder:

* In view of the result for the linancial year company turnover has been remarkable increase by 11%
but profit was decrease by71%. Duc to the effect of Depreciation as per Companies Act-2013
otherwise company has been pertormed very well in this year and Board of directors are hopeful that
they will increase the turn over as well as profit even in this recession and stiff competition in the
processing sector, The directors are fully hopeful to achieve better results in future years,

¢ Company has taken the expansion in this vear by adding an impurted machine Comfit Finish Range
machine for better fimshing Board of Director has taken a very big step by adding 100% cotton
labric processing in company for this they added Fully Automatic Yamuna Hydraulic Jigger
Machine in this regard.



DIVIDEND
With a view to provide a cushion [or any financial contingencies in the future and to strengthen the financial

position of the Compuany, your Directors have decided not fo recommend any dividend for the period under
review.

POLLUTION CONTROI.

Your directors have pleasure to report that they going to install (hree stages RO, System of 1500 KLD
which is very important for pollution control measures, And al present in water crisis problem it is very
helpful and necessary for us. Qur new ETP and to be installed R.O. System is a complete solution of water
pollution.

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS

Information under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies( Particnlars of
Employees) Rules, 1975 and Information as per Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board
of Dircetors) Rules, 1988 relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, forcign exchange
carnings and ontgo are given in Annexure forming part of this report.

LISTING OF SHARES

The Shares of the Company are listed in the following Stock Exchanges:-

Jaipur Stock Cxchange Ltd., Jaipur.

Delhi Stock Fxchange Association Ltd, New Delhi.

Listing fee has already been paid to hoth the Stock Oxchange for the vear 2014-2015 in time.,

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 Shri Sourabh Chhabra, director of the company will retire at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting but being cligible offers themselves for reappointment.

PLBLIC DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from the public within the meaning of Section 73 &76 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

APPOINTMENT OF SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Company has been appointed SEBI Repistered Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd, New Dellu,
as Transfer agent for transfer of shares

DEMAT OF SHARES

Company has been made an arrangement with NSDL and CDSL 1o convert physical shares mto Demat
form. $o member can convert his/her Shares in to demat form.

RESERVES

Your Directors propose (o carry Rs. 12.20 Lac /- being the profit for the current year to the Balance Sheet
during the financial vear ended March 31, 2015,




CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There 15 no change in the authorised and paid up share capital of the company during the year.

I'he Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 10, 00, 000, 00/- (Rupees Ten crore only) divided into
1 Crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/- sach.

The Paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 5, 03, 17,500 only) divided into 50, 31,750) equity shares of
Rs 10/-each.

INDUSTRY SCEMARIO AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Your company is Public Limited compamies engaged, inter-alia, in the area of ManMade Fabric
headquartered at Bhilwara (Kay.), india and not have any subsidiary company.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

Ne material changes and comsnitments allecting e {inancial posilion of the company have occurred
between the end of the linancial year of the company o which the linancial statcments relate and the date of
this report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATION IN FUTURE

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which affect the going
concern status and future operation of the Company,

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

1. Execmntive Directors and KMPs:

(i) At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 30™ 2014, the
Members had re-appointed Mr, Tilok Chand Chhabra (DIN 00167401) Director

{ii)  Mr. Sourabh Chhabra (DIN: 00488493) dircctor is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible
ofler hersell for re-appointment as director of the Company.




2. Independent Directors:

(1) Mr. Sandeep hinger (DIN: 06885495), Mr. Praveen Kumar Kothari (DIN: 06885503 ) and
Smt.Divva Rameshchand Kacchara (DIN. 06885490) were appointed as the Independent
Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 for a term of 5 years with effect from 30™ May 2014,

(iiy  All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as

laid down under Section 149%(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agpreement,

3. Other K inl Persons:
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Dinesh Porwal as a CFO and Mr. Ashish Kumar Bagrecha as

a CS (ACS 34182) as required under section 203 of the Companics Act, 2013 on the recommendation
of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and designated them as the Key Managerial Persormel.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Dircctors of the Company met 7 times during the year on 30" May, 2014, 5% August, 2014,
25" September, 2014, 12th November, 2014_ 15" December, 2014, 13" February 2015. and 21% March,
2015.in respect of which proper notices were piven and the proceedings were properly recorded, signed and
maintained in the Minutes book kept by the Company for the purpose. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period preseribed under the Companies Act, 2013

Board independence:

Our definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from Clausc 49 of the Listing Agreement with
Stock Exchanges and Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the confirmation/disclosures
recerved [rom the Directors and on evaluation of the relationships disclosed, the tollowing Non-Executive
Directors are Independent in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Section 149%(6) of the
Companies Acl, 2013:-

(1} Mr, Sandeep hinger (DIN: (06885445)
(ii)  Mr. Paveen kumar Kothari (DIN: 06885503 )
(iii)  Smt. Divyva Rameshchand Kacchara (DIN: 06885490)

Annual evaluation by the Board:

The evaluation [ramework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key arcas:
i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Hoard Committee Meetings.
. Qualily ol contribution to Board deliberations.
iil, Strategic perspectives or inpuls regarding future prowth of Company and its performance.
iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management.
v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests

The evaluation involves Sclf-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of
Directors. Member of the Board not participated in the discussion of his/her evaluation,
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant (o the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 it is hereby confirmed:

Accounting Standards:-
While preparing the annual accounts of the company for the year ended 31% March 2015 the applicable

accounting standards bad been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if
any.

Accounting Policies:-

The directors have selected such accounting policics and applied them consistently and reasonable and
prudent judpment and estimates were made so as 1o pive a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period.

Preparation of accounts on 3 going concern hasis:-

The Annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis,

Internal Financigl Controi:-

The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and such internal
financial control is adequate and operating well.

Compliance:-

The directors had devised proper system Lo ensure compliance with the provision of all applicable laws and
that such system is adequate and operating effectively.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

During the year, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has the following 3 (Three)
Committees as follows:

{1} Audit Committee

{2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

{(3) Blakeholders” Relationship Commitice

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH THE RELATED
PARTIES

Your Company has entered into trmsactions with the related partics, which are in its ordinary course of
business and are carried oul on an arm’s length basis and hence the provisivns of Section 188 are not
applicable.

OR
The particulars of every contract or arrangewments entered into by the Company with related parties referred

to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companics Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
nnder third proviso thereto shall be diselosed in Form No. AQC-2. As Annexure 11 (Farmat enclosed).




INERATION OF EMPLOYEES COVERED UNDER RULE 5{2) OF THE

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
RULES, 2014:

None of the employee of vour company, who was cmployed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of
remuneration in aggregate of sixty lakh rupees or more or if employed for the part of the financial vear was
in receipt of remuneration of five lakh rupees or more per month.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES.
JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

At the end of the financial vear under review none of the company have become or ceased 1o be subsidianies,
joint venlures or associale companics, and the Company has no subsidiary

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company has no subsidiary

ALDITORS

The Company in its 20" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30" September, 2014 appointed M/s
O.P.DAD& Co. (Firm Registration No 002330C),Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the
Company will retire at the forthcoming Anmual General Meeting and are elipible for rcappointment. In
- accordance with the Companies Act 2013, it is proposed to reappoint them from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the T'wenty third Annual General Meeting, subject to the
approval of sharcholders; however. their terms of appointment and remuneration shall be ratified by the
mecmbers of the Company in the ensning AGM.

AUDITORS' REPORT

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the auditors in their report.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report from the practicing company secretary is applicable
to the Company

The Board has appointed M/s M Sancheti & Associates, Company Secretary, to conduct Secretanial Audit
for the financial year 2014-15. The Sevretarial Audil Report in form MR-3 for the financial vear ended
March 31, 2015 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure 11 to this Report, The Secretartal Audit Report
does not contain any gualification, Teservation or adverse remark.

APPOINTMENT OF COST AUDITOR

As per the direction given by the Central Government. the Company has based on an application made,
received the (Government's approval for re-appointment of Mfs VK. Goyal & Co. a finn of Cost
Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the year ending 317 March, 2016,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN;

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 for the year ended 317 March,
2015 is annexed herewith as “ Annexure 17,




CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with rules framed there under, every
- company inclading its holding or subsidiary and a foreign company, which fulfills the enterta specified in
sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act shall comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Acl and its
rules.

Since the Company is not falling under any criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act,
your Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™) Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism named vigil mechanism/whistle blower Policy 1o deal with instance of
fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the Vigil Mechanism Policy are explained in the Corporate
Governance Report as Annexure TV,

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk manapement 15 the identification, assessment and taking pro-active measures to face the impact of
various risks. Risks may arisc from uncertainty in financial markets, project failures, legal labilities, credit
risk, accidents, natural causes and disasters etc. The Company has adopled appropriate procedure and
policies to safeguard the company against business and other risk (0 mitigate its impact to the extent
possible. The Risk management plans & policies are periodically momnitored, reviewed and evaluated and
updated from time to time.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 -

The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 are furnished hereunder:

Details of Loans:
SL | Dateof | Details | Amoun | Purpose for  Time | Date | Dateof | Rateof | Security
No | making of t which the | period | of BR | SR(if | Interest '
loan | Bomowe loanisto | for reqd) '
r be utilized | which
by the itis |

| recipient  given | |
|
!

Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil ' Nil Nil [ Nil Nil Nl

Details of Investments:-

| SL | Date of | Details of | Amount | Purpose for which the | Dateof BR | Date of | Expect
| No |investm | Investee | proceeds from SROf | edrate |
ent investmenl is proposed | reqd) of
to be utilized by the ! return
recipient |
Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil |
TR
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Details of Guarantee / Security Provided:

SL Date of Details | Amount | Purpose for Dateofl | Dateof | Commissio
No providing of which the BR SR{C | n
security/guarant | recipien securily/puarante any) |
ge t | e i proposed to
be utilized by the |
recipient
Nil | Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil ' Nil Nil

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company’s internal control systems are adequatc and commensurate with the nature and size of the
Company and it cnsures:

» Timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
. Optimum utilization, efficient monitoring, timely maintenance and safcty of its assets,
. Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and management policies.

IIUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company is pleased to report that during the year under reporting, the industrial relations were cordial.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 read with the Companics (Accounts) Rules,
2014 regarding conservation of energy, and technology absorption docs not apply to your Compary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OLTGO

Value of Imports : NIL
Expenditure in Foreign Currency A | 7 S
Value of Imported Raw Material ; NIL

Foreign Exchange Carnings during the year:  NIL

DISCLOSURES _UNDER SEXU HARASSMENT _OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

There was no case filled during the vear, under the sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Turther Company ensures that there is a healthy and safe atmosphere
for every women cmployee at the workplace and made the necessary policics for safe and secure
environment for women emnployce.



INDUSTRIAL RELATION

Industrial relation remained cordial and peacelul during the year. Your Directors wish Lo place on record the
appreciation for the devoted services rendered by the workers, stall and executives of the Company al all
levels which have very much contributed o the efficient management of the Company’s aflairs and
assistance

CORPORATE GOVERNAN(C'E

Pursuant to clause 49 of the listing agreements with the stock exchanges, Corporate Govemnance Report and
Auditor's Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance are made a part of the
annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like (o express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received
from customers, vendors, stakeholders, Central and State government Authorities and other business
associates and bankers of the Company. Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all the employees for
rendering high quality service to every constituent of the Companv’s customers. The emplovees have
worked on principles of honesty, integrity, fair play and this has helped to ensure a sustained excellence in
performance. Finally [nrectors wonld like to convey their gratitude to the members and look forward to their
cotitinued support.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
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Annexure |

FORM NO.MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Managemen! &
Administration) Rules, 2014,

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

[ 1 ]CIN ' ' 1.17117RIPLCO08916
2. | Registration Date 1410, 1994
3. | Name of the Company | A K. SPINTEX LIMITED
4. | Category/Sub-category | LIMITED COMPANY =l
of the Company
5 | Address ofthe 14 K.M. STONE BILIYA KALAN S i
Registered office & CHITTOR ROAD, BHILWARA-31 1001
contact delails RAJASTHAN
6, | Whether listed - | YES
commpany '
7. | Name, Address & | Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pyvi Lid. ]

contact details of the Beetal House, 3rd Floor

Registrar & Transfer 99 Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre,
Agent, if any. Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir,

- New Delhi- 1 10062

Phong- 31-11-2996 1281-83

Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (Al the business activitics contributing
10 % ar more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

/8. No. |Namg and Description ofmain | NIC Code of the |% to total lurnover of the
| products / services Product/service | company

‘I’ Fabric Processing 2650 100%

2 N.A. N.A. | N.A,

3 N.A, NA ] N.A.

[11- 1L PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activitics contributing
10 % or mure of the total turnover of the company shall be stared)

[ SN | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the | % fo total lurnover of the
| products / services Product/service compatly |
1 [NA N.A, N.A. J
|3 [NA N.A. N.A
T T



Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

" b) Banks /
Fl

Q ]

¢) Central
Govt

d) State
Crovi(s)

{}

_e} Venture
Capital
Funds

{

{3

0 _|

)
Insurance
Companies

{ ]

o} Flls

| Venture
Capital
Funds

h) Foreign |

ol o
|

i) Others
(specity)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institution
8

¥

' a) Bodics
Cormp.

1) Indian

66150

2500 |0

6865

1.36%

66150

2500

68650

1.36% 0.00

i)

Chverseas

0

0

b}
 Individuals

i)
| Individual
shareholder
s holding
nominal

share

capitalup | 409750 |

2290 | 4326
0 50

8.60%

392550




VL SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category-wise Sharc Holding
Category | No. of Shares hicld at the heginning of | No. of Shares held ai the end ofthe yearfAs | %
of the year|As on 31-March-2014] on 31-March-2015] Cha
Shareholde nge |
| £5 o e o ~ dur
Demat Physi | Tota | % of Demat Physi | Total Yo of ng
cal 1 Total cal { Total | the
s | Shares | Shares  year |
A. | ! B
Promoters
(1) Indian B
a) 1151550 | 0 1151 [2289% [1151550 |0 | 1151550 |32.89% | 0.00
Individual/ 220
HUF _
b)Central | 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
_(m i . -
c) State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I
Govi(s) \ 0
d) Bodies 2135250 |0 2135 | 42.44% 2135250 0 2135250 42.44%,
C 250
[ | 1000
¢) Banks/ [0 |0 0 0 0 "o 0 0
i i . 0
f) Any 0 o 0 |0 0 0 0 0
other | 0
Total |
sharcholdi |
ng of ‘
Promoter
A 3286
[ SO a_zsﬁsmj_ 0 800| 6532% 0| 3286800 6532% 0.00
|
' B. Public ! | |
] Shareholdi ‘ |
i \
T 0 It 0 |0 0 0 0 0 ==
| | | | | 10 |




[ to Rs, 1
lakh

it}

.| Individual
shareholder
*| 8 holding
nominal
share
capital in
‘excess of
Rs 1 lakh

1
Sl

0

1243

c) Others
(specify)

0

1243

650 | 650

24 72%

1189850

1284050

25.52%

0

0

1]

Mon
Resident
Indians

()verseas

Comorate

Bodies
Foreign

| Nationals

10

i

0

0

o

0

{

Clearing
Members
Trusts

]

=

Foreign
Bodies - D
R

=

=

Sub-total
(BH2):-

89050

1655
00

1744
950

Total
Public
Sharcholdi
ng
(Bi=(BX1)
+(B)(2)

89050

L

o=

1277550

1655
200

1744
950

. Shares
held by
Custodian
for GDRs
& ADRs

Grand
Total
| (A+BHC)

3375850

{

34.68% |

1277550

00

0

0

1655 5031
900 | 750

100

4564350

Jlu

4671

17444950

34.68%

0.00

4674
00

1744950

34.68%

0

0

4674
00

| 5031750

1040




- B) Sharcholding of Promoter-

At the Bﬂd of the year

i SN | Shareholde | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the year %
-1 r's Name | the year (01.04. 2014) (31.03.2015) change
,l No.of | %of |%ofShares | No of | % of total | %ol Sharcs | 10
| Shares total | Pledped / Shares | Shares of the | Pledged / shareh
' Shares of | encumbered company | encumbered | olding
. the to total | to total shares | during
J company | sharcs | | the
| | year
I | Sourabh 25575 25575 | (.00
 |Chhabra | 0| 5.08%0 ! 0 5.08% | 0
2 | SarojDevi | 44100 ! | 44100 0.00
L Chhabra | 0 870% 0 | 0 8.76% | 0
3 | Tilok ' . - S 0.00
Chand 45480 45480
Chhabra 0 9.04% | 0 0 9.04% | ()
4 | Fashion 0.00
Suitings 21352 21352
Pvt Ltd, 50 42 44% | O 50 42.44% | O
32868 | 32868 .00
| | Total 00 6532% 0 00 65.32% | 0
() Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SN | Particulars Sharcholding at the | Cumulative
beginning of the vear Shareholding during the
yoar
No.of | %oftotal | No.of | % oftotal
shares shares of the | shares | shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in | 0 0 0 |0
Promoters  Shareholding during the !
| year specifying the reasons for
| increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
fransfer / bonus/ sweat cquity ¢te.);




D) Shareholding Pattera of top ten Shareholders:

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs);

S | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Comulative
N | Shareholders bepinning Shareholding during
of the year the I
year !
; Nao. of %oftotal | No.of | % oftotal
sharcs sharcs of | sharcs | shares of
| the the
company company
At the beginning of the year
. | LPKALYA ' 187050  [372% 187050 | 3.72%
2. | SMT. KAMLA KALYA (146100 | 2.90% 146100 | 2.90%
3. | WRIDHI CHAND JAIN 130350 | 2.59% 130350 [ 2.59%
4. | PRAMOD JAGATIYA | 118950 | 2.42% 1189500 | 2.42%
5. | GULADB CHAND JAIN 84130 | 1.67% | B4150 1.67%
6. | RAKESH MAHESHWARI T0050 | 1.39% | 70050 1.39%
7. | NARBADA DEVI KABRA 70000 1.39% 70000 | 1.39%
5. | BHERU LAL DAL | 66900 1.33% 66900 | L33%
9. | LIFESURE CONSULTANCY PYT.LTD. |' a1 30 1.31% G015 [ 1.31% |
10 | KAPIL DAD 154750 [ 1.09% 154750 [ 1.09% |
TOTAL | 9.94450 | 19.76% | 994,450  19.76% |
 Date wise increase/Decrease in ! 5 N i
shareholding during the year | 7 o |
1, | PRAMOD JAGATIYA (Decrease) | 118950 2.42% 118930 242%
2. | GULAB CITAND JAIN (Decrease) | 84150 1.67% 84150 1.67%
3. | EAPIL DAD (Dccrease) 54750 1.0U%% 54750 1.09%
4. | ASIIISH KALYA (Increase) 121650 241% 121650 | 241%
5. | RAHUL KALYA (Increase) 118950 | 236% 118950 | 2.36%
5 | For Each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the Cumnulative R
N | Shareholders beginning Shareholding durnng
of the year the
year
Mo of e of total No. of %o ol total
shares shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
At the End of the year
(1. | LPKALYA 187050 | 3.72% 187050 [3.72%
2. [ SMT KAMLA KALYA 146100 | 2.90% 146100 [290%
3. | WRIDHI CHAND JAIN 130350 2.59% 130350 2.5%%
4. | ASHISH KALYA 121650 [241% 121650 | 241%
5. |[RAHULKALYA 118950 | 236% 118950 [2.36%
6. | GULAB CHAND JAIN 84150 | 1.67% 84150 | 1.67% |
(7. RAKESIT MAITESHWARI 70050 | 139% | 70050 | 13%% |




8. | NARBADA DEVI KABRA 70000 1.39% 70000 1.39%
9. | LIFESURE CONSULTANCY PVT LTD. 661 50 1.31% 60 lﬁﬂl [.31% =),
10 | KAUSHLIY A KABRA 50000 09%% | 50000 (). 99%
| TOTAL AT THE END OF YEAR 10,44,450 | 20.75% 10,44.750 | 20.75%
'E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN | Shareholding of cach Directors and | Shareholding at the | Cumulative Sharcholding |
I each Key Managerial Personnel beginning during the ’
of the year year
No. of % of total | No. of Yo of total
shares shares of | shares | shares of the
the company
I cnmpany
At the heginﬂing of the vear |
l. | Tilok Chand Chhabra 434800 | 9.04% 454800 | 9.04% |
2. | Sourabh Chhabra 255750 5.08% | 255750 | 5.08% |
3. | Prakush Chand Chhabra Managing '
Director Nil Nil Nil e Nil
4. | Ashish Kumar Bagrecha Company

' | Secretary : Nil Nil | Nil | Nil

5. Dinesh Porwal CFO il Nil Nt | Nil |
Date wise Increase / Decrease in N.A. M.A. N.A, N A,
Promoters Shareholding during the
vear specifyving the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity ete.):

. Al the end of the year _ |
1. ' Tiiok Chand Chhabra _ 454800 9.04% | 454800 :- . 9.04%
2. Sourabh Chhabra 255750 5.08% 255750 | 5.08%

'3, | Prakash Chand Chhabra Managing

Director Nil Nil il Nil

4. | Ashish Kumar Bagrccha Company
Secretary Nil [ Nil Nil Nil

{ 5. | Dinesh Porwal CFO Nil Nil Nil Nil
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I') INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment.

Secured Loans | §=
excluding :J::::I:“M Deposits ]ln“dt::]l sl
ik | depaosits =
.| Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial vear :
| i) Principal Amount 97505216 | 55000000 0 | 152505216
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 1779484 0 | 1779484
| iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 | '@ 0 b ]
Total (i+ii-+iii 97505216 | 56779484 0 154284700
Change in Indebtedness during | - == RS
the financial vear
% Addition ' 5950000 12000000 0 17950000
| * Reduction 8874056 | 27950695 0 36824751
Net Change ' 10828789 0 40828785
Indebtedness af the end of the _ .
financial year
| i) Principal Amount 94581160 55000000 0 149581160 |
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 3024000 0 | 302400 ]
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+Hi-+Hii) 24581160 S8024004) 0 152605160

XL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAG ERIAL PERSONNEL.-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Dircctors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager | Total Amount
oL Prakash Chand Chhabra

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions 25,20,000 (2520000
contained in section 17(1) of the
| Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) | - .
Income-tax Act, 1961
{¢) Profits in licu of salary under | - [
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,
1961

-

12 Stock Option Il [ Nil
'3 | Sweat Equity Nil i Nil ]
4 Commission g :
- as % of profit
- others, specify... . ) _ _
5 Others, pleasc specify ] e 2 e e B
L Total (A) ] 25.20,000 25,20.000
Ceiling as per the Act |
FAN e
~ T



B. Remuneration to other directors

SN. Particulars of Remuncration | Name of Directors Total Amount

Sandeep | Praveen | Divya Ramesh-
| Hinger | Kothari | Chandra

- Kacchara

| | Independent Directors
Fee for attending board NA | NA | NA INA
committee meetings
' Commission _ |
| Others, please specify _I
' Total (1) | N.A, N.A. N.A, N.A. ;'
2 Other Non-Executive
Directors
Fee for attending board
commitiee meetings | |
Commission | ]
Others, please specify |
| Total 2) | NA. | NA N.A. N.A.
| Total (B)=(142) N
Ii Total Managerial ' | N.A. N.A. N.A, N.A,
 Remuneration :
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

' SN | Particulars of Remuneration ' Key Managerial Personnel
| jall CEO cs CFO | Total
1 | Gross salary 0
(a) Salary as per provisions contained ] 157600 0 157600
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, |
1961
' (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0 0 .
Income-tax Act, 1961 '
(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under section [ i
| 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
|2 | Stock Option i 0 )
| 3 | Sweat Equity 0 (
4 | Commission 0 | 0
' - as % of profit 0 0
others, specify... 0 - 0
5 | Others, please specify 0 0

| Total 0 157600 | 0 157600

v



XIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES;

Type Sectionof | Brief | Details of Authority | Appeal made,
the Description | Penaity / [RD / Lif any (give
| Companies Punishment/ NCLTY | Details)
Act Compounding = COURT)]
' lees imposed
' A. COMPANY '
Penalty N.A. | NA, [ NA N.A. | N.A.
Punishment | N.A. N.A, NA NA [ NA
Compounding | N.A. N.A. “NA. N.A. | NA
B. DIRECTORS ' ' ' '
Penalty N.A. | NA. NA. N.A. [ N.A.
 Punishment | N.A. N.A. NA. N.A, NA
| Compounding | N A N.A. NA. N.A. N.A
' C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
' Penalty N.A NA, N.A. NLA. N.A,
Punishment ~ N.A. N.A, N.A. ~ NA NA
Compounding | N.A | NLA. NA. | NA. N.A.




ANMNXURE-I1
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year ended on 31™ March, 2015
{Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companles Act, 2013 and Rule No. @ of the Caompanles (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To
The Members,

* A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED

14 K.M. STONE, BILIYA KALAN
CHITTORGARH ROAD
BHILWARA-311001 (RAJ.)

1 have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by A.K, SPINTEX LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my apinion thereon.

Based on my verification of company’ s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, 1 hereby report that in
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March,
2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made herelnafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financlal year ended on 31% March, 2015 according to the
provisions of;

: B The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’Y and the rules made thereunder;

o The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investmenl, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

b The following Regulations and Guidelines prescrited under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

{(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992:;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capltal and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009,

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

(F) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and deallng with client;

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)&

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(Not applicable to the Company during Audit Period)

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
{i) secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(Not Notified hence not applicable to the Company during Audit Periad)




{in The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Jalpur Stock Exchange Limited,
Delhi Stock Exchange Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Centeral
Depaository Services Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the &cts, Rules,
Requlations, Guidelines, Standards, etc, as mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below:

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevaliing In the company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basls, the
Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

1. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1351

2. The Enwvironment (Protection) Act, 1986

3. The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

4, Emplayees” State Insurance Act, 1948

5. Egual Remuneration Act, 1976

6. The Factories Act, 1948

7. The Industrial Employment {Standing Orders) Act, 1945

8. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

9. Legal Metrology Act, 2009

10, The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

11, The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

12, The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

13. The Water {Prevention and Control of Pollution] Act, 1974

14, The 5Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, The Company
has not constituted an internal complaints Committee. However the Company, being certified under Warldwide
Responsible Accredited Production (WRAP), has a committee for prevention of sexual harassment of women at wark
place.

I further report that, during the year under review!

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directars,
Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that toock place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act,

Adequate notice is glven to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda are sent at least seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority decislan Is carried through while the dissenting members views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

However Company has appolnted CFO but form related to the appointment has not bean Aled with ROC
till date

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

For M Sancheti & Associates

Company Secretaries

Proprietor
Dated: 15th May, 2015 M. No.: F#972
Place: Jalpur C. P No.:. 89397

(This report Is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A which forms an
integral part of this report.)



To

Annexure-A"

The Members,

AK. SPINTEX LIMITED

14 K.M, STONE, BILIYA KALAN
CHITTORGARH ROAD
BHILWARA-311001 (RAL)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to express an opimon on these secretarial records based on our audit.,

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records, The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verfied the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of

accounts of the Compan',r_.

Where ever reguired, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules, and requlations and happening of events etc.

The compllance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.
For M Sancheti & Associates
Company Secretaries
Proprietor
Dated: 15th May, 2015 M. No.: F7972
Place: Jaipur C. P. No.: 8997



Annexure - 111

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of scction 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companics
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts‘arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred o in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transaction under third proviso thereto,

1. Details of contracts of arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

[ SL.No. | ' Particulars Details
a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A. '
h) Nanure of contracts/arrangements/transaction : NoA ¥
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction MN.A

d) Qalient terms of the comtracts or arrangements or | N.A.
transaction including the value, if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or | N.A.
arrangements or lransactions’

0 Date of approval by the Board ' N.A, -
| g} | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. (
h) Datc on which the special resolution was passed in | N.A i

General meeling as required under firsl proviso to
seclion 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

| SL. No. Particulars ' Details

| &) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NA
b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NA

i c)' Duration of the vontracts/arangementsiransaclion N.A _
d)  Salient terms of the confracts or amungemCNts OF NA T

transaction including the value, il any
(&) . Date of approval by the Board N.A.
| ) | Amount paid as advances, if any ~[NA =

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

{"--'_ : x 5 st .'| 1 ) '1 "
Lyt oD R s Ml bagied
PLACE; BHILWARA [P. C. CHHABRA|  [T.C.Chhabra] A K. BAGRECHA

DATED; 30052015 Din No-001556331 Din No-00167411 COMPANY SECRETARY
MANAGING DIRECTOR MRECTOR

For:A.K. SPINTEXLTD.
DINESH RORWAL
"er‘l.{_.: I-\_:‘F_F :

5} J
CHIEF FINAN
.f,.-""




Annexure IV

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
A K. SPINTEX LIMITED
1. PREFACE

11, 5ection 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires every listed company and such class or classes of
companies, as may be prescribed to establish a vigil mechanism for the directors and emplovecs to report
_fenuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed. ‘The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct ot
Directors and Senior Management Executives (“the Code™), which lays down the principles and standards
that should govemn the actions of the Company and its employees. Any actual or potential violation of the
Code, howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, would be a matter of serious concern for the Company.
Such a vigil mechanism shall provide for adequate safepuards apainst victimization of persons who use such
mechanism and also make provision for direcl aceess to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in
appropriate or exceptional cases.

12 Clause 49 of (he Listing Agreement between listed companies and the Stock Hxchanges, inter aha,
provides for a non-mandatory requirement for all listed companies to establish a mechanism called *Whistle
Blower olicy” fur employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or
suspeeted, frawd or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct .

1.3, Under these circumstances, A. K. Spintex Limited, being a Listed Company proposes ta establish a
Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism and to formulate a policy for the same.

2. POLICY OBJECTIVES

2.1. The Company is committed to adhere to the hiphest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of
business operations. T'o maintain these standards, the Company encourages ils employees who have
concerns about suspecled misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without fear of
punishment or unfair treatment. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the employees
and Dircetors o report 1o the management concems about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Codes of conduct or policy. The mechanism provides for adequate safegnards against
victimization of emplovess and Directors to avail of the mechanizm and also provide for dircet access to the
Chainman/ CEQY Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cascs.

2.2, This neither releases emplayees from their duty of confidentiality in the course of their work nor can it
be used as a ronte for raising malicious or unfounded allegations against people in authority and / or
colleagues in general.

3, SCOPE OF THE POLICY

3.1, This Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place / suspected to have taken place,
misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of company rules, manipulations.
negligence causing danger to public health and safety, misappropriation of monies, and other matters or
activity on account of which the interest of the Company is affected and formally reported by whistle
blowers concerning its employees.

DEFINITIONS

4.1. “Alleged wrongful conduct™ shall mean violaton of law, Infrimpement of Company’s rules,
misappropriation of monies, actual or suspected fraud, substantial and specific danger to public health and
safety or abuse of authority™.

4.2 “Andit Committee™ means a Committec constituled by the Board of Directors of the Company in
accordance guidelines of Listing Apreement and Companies Act, 2013,

4.3, *Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

4.4, *Company” means the A K. SPINTEX LIMITED and all its offices.




4.5. *Code” means Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Exceutives adopted ALK,
SPINTEX LIMITED,

4.6. “Employee™ means all the present employees and whole time Directors of the Company.

4.7. “Protected Disclosure” means a concemn raised by an employec or group of employees of the
Company, through a written communication and made in pood faith which discloses or demonstrates
information about an unethical or improper activity under the title “SCOPE OF THE POLICY” with respect
to the Company. It should be factual and not speculative or in the nature of an interpretation / conclusion and
should contain as much specific information as possible to allow for proper assessment of the naturc and
exlent of the concem,

4.8, “Subject” means a person or group of persons against or in relation to whom a Protected Disclosure is
made or evidence gathered during the course of an investigation.

4.9. “Yigilance and Ethies Officer” means an officer appointed to receive protected disclosures from
whistle blowers, maintaining records thereof, placing the same before the Audit Committce for its disposal
and informing the Whistle Blower the result thereof

4.10. “Whistle Blower” is an employee or group of employces who make a Protected Disclosure under this
Policy and also referred in this policy as complainant.

5. ELIGIBILITY
All Employees of the Company are cligible to make Protected Disclosures under the Policy in relation to
matiers concerning the Company.

6. RECEIPT AND MSPOSAL OF PROTECTED DISCLOSURES

6.1. All Protected Disclosures should be reported in writing hy the complainant as soon as possible afler the
Whistle Blower becomes aware of the same so as to ensure a clear understanding of the issues raised and
should either be typed or written in a legible handwriting in English and Hindi,

6.2 The Protected Disclosure should be submirted in a closed and secured envelope and should be super
scribed as “Protected disclosure under the Whistle Blower policy”, Allernatively, the same can also be sent
through email with the subject “Protected disclosure under the Whistle Blower policy™. If the complaint is
not super scribed and closed as mentioned above, it will not be possible for the Audit Committee to protect
the complainant and the protected disclosure will be dealt with as if a normal diselosure. In order to protect
identity of the complainant, the Vigilance and Ethics Officer will not issue any acknowledgement to the
complainants and they are advised neither to wiile their name / address on the envelope nor enter into any
turther correspondence with the Vigilance and Crhics Officer. T'he Vigilance Officer shall assure that in case
any further clarification is required he will get in touch with the complainant.

6.3. The Protected Disclosure should be forwarded under a covering letter sipned by the complainant. The
Vigilance Officer and cthics / Chairman of the Audit Committee/ M1Y Chairman as the case may be, shall
detach the covering letter bearing the identity of the Whistle Blower and process only the Protected
Disclosure.

6.4. All Protected Disclosures should be addressed to the Vigilance and ethics Officer of the Company or to
the Chairman of the Audit Committes’ M1/ Chairman in exceptional cases. The contact details of the
Vigilanee Officer are as under:-

Name and Address — Ashish Kumar Bagrecha
AK SPINTEX LIMITED

14 K.M. Stone, Biliya Kalan

Chittor Road, Bhilwara-311001

6.5. Protected Disclosure against the Vigilance and Ethics Officer should be addressed to the Chairman of
the Company and the Protected Disclosure against the Chairman and Managing director of the Company
should be addressed to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The contact details of the Chairman &
Dircetor and the Chairman of the Audit Committee arc as under:



Name and Address of Chairman and Director - Shri Prakash Chand chhabra
AK. SPINTEX LIMITED
14 K.M. Stone, Biliyva Kalan
Chittor Road, Bhilwara-3110011

Email akspintexid@gmail.com
Name and Address of the — Shri Sandeep hinper
Chairman of the Audit Committee 19, Bhopal Gany,
Mahaveer Mohalla Bhilwara-311001
Email akspintexfd@ipmail com

6.6, On receipt of the protected disclosure the Vigilance and Dthics Officer / Chairman & Managing Director
/ Chairman of the Audit Committee, as the case may be, shall make a record of the Protected Disclosure and
also ascertain from the complainant whether he was the person who made the protected disclosure or not. He
shall also carry out initial investigation cither himself or by involving any other Officer of the Company or
an culside agency before referring the matter to the Audit Committec of the Company for further appropriale
investigation and needful action. The record will include:

&) Brief facts;

b} Whether the same Protected Disclosure was raised previously by anvone, and if so. the outcome thercol’
¢) Whether the same Protected Disclosure was raised previously on the same subject;

d) Details of actions taken by Vigilance and Frhics Officer / Chairman & Managing Dircetor for processing
the complaint

) Findings of the Audit Committee

f) The recommendations of the Audit Committee! other action(s).

6.7 The Audit Comumittee, if deems fit, may call for further information or particulars rom the complainant.

T.INVESTIGATION

7.1, All protected disclosures under this policy will be recorded and thoroughly investigated. The Audit
Commiltes may investigate and may at its discretion consider involving any other Officer of the Company
and/ or an outside agency lfor the purpose of investigation,

7.2. The decision to conduct an investigation is by itself' not an accusation and is to be treated as & neutra]
fact finding process.

7.3. Subject(s) will normally be informed in writing of the allegations at the outset of a formal investipation
and have apportunitics for providing their inputs during the mvestigation,

74, Subjecl(s) shall have a duty to co-operale with the Audit Committee or any of the Officers appointed by
it in this repard,

7.5, Subject({s) have a night to consult with a person or persons of their choice, other than the Vigilance and
Fthies Oflicer / Investigators and/or members of the Audit Committee and/or the Whistle Blower.

7.6. Subject(s) have a responsibility not to interfere with the investigation. [vidence shall not be withheld.
destroyed or tampered with and witness shall not be influcnced, coached, threatened or intimidated by the
subject(s).

7.7. Unless there are compelling reasons not to do so, subject(s) will be given the opportunity to respond (o
material findings contained in the investigation report. No allegation of wrong doing against a subject(s)
shall be considered as maintainable unless there is good evidence in support of the allepation.

7.8. Subjeet(s) have a right to be informed of the vutcome of the investigations. If allegations are not
sustained, the Subject should be consulted as to whether public disclosure of the investigation results would
be in the best interest of the Subject and the Company.

7.9. The investigation shall bc completed normally within 90 days of the receipt of the protected disclosare
and s extendable by such period as the Audit Committee deems fit.




B. DECISION AND REPORTING

8.1. If an investigation leads the Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman of the Audit Committee to
conclude that an improper or unethical act has been committed, the Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman
of the Audit Committee shall recommend to the management of the Company w take such disciplinary or
corrective action as he may deem fit. It is clarified that any disciplinary or corrective action initiated againsi
the Subject as a result of the findings of an investigation pursvant to this Policy shall adhere to the
applicable personmel or staff conduct and disciplinary procedures.

8.2. The Vigilance and Ethics Officer shall submit a report 1o the Chairman of the Audit Commiltee on a
regular basis about all Protected Disclosures referred to him/her since the last report together with the results
ol investigations, if any.

8.3, In case the Subject is the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee after cxamining the Protected Disclosure shall forward the protected disclosure to other members
of the Audit Comumittes if deemed fit. 'The Audil Committee shall appropriately and expeditiously
investigate the Protected Disclosure.

8.4. If the report of investigation is not to the satisfaction of the complainant, the complainant has the right

to report the event Lo the appropriate lepal or investigating agency.

8.5, A complainant who makes talse allegations of unethical & improper practices or about al leged wronglul
conduct of the subject to the Vipilance and Cthics Officer or the Audit Committee shall be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action in accordance with the rules, procedures and policies of the Company.

9, SECRECY / CONFIDENTIALITY
9.1. The complainant, Vigilance and Ethics Officer, Members of Audit € ‘ommittee, the Subject
and everybody involved in the process shall:
9.1.1. Maintain confidentiality of all matters under this Policy
9.1.2. Discuss only to the extent or with those persons as required under this policy for completing the
process of investigations.
9.1.3. Not keep the papers unattended anywhere at any time
9.1.4. Keep the electronic mails / files under password,

10. PROTECTION

10.1. No unfair treatment will be meted out to a Whistlc Blower by virtue of his/ her having reported a
Protected Disclosure under this policy. The company, as a policy, condemns any kind ol discrimination.
harassment, victimization or any other unfair employment practice being adopted against Whistle Blowers,
Complete protection will, therefore, be given to Whistle Blowers against any unfair practice like relaliation,
threat or intimidation of termination / suspension of service, disciplinary action, transfer, demotion, refusal
of promation or the like including any direel or indirect use of autharity to obstruct the Whistle Blower's
right to continue o perform his duties / functions including making further Protected Disclosure. The
company will take steps to minimize dilTiculties, which the Whistle Blower may experience as a result of
making the Protected Disclosure. Thus if’ the Whistle Blower is required to pive evidence in criminal ar
disciplinary proceedings, the Company will arrange for the Whistle Blower to receive advice about the
procedurs, etc.

10.2. A Whistle Blower may report any violation of the above clause to the Chairman of the Audil
Committee, who shall investipate into the same and recommend suitable action to the management.

10.3. The identity of the Whistle Blower shall be kept confidential to the extent possible and permitied under
law. The identity of the complainant will nol be revealed unless he himself has made either his details public
or disclosed his identity to any other office or autherity. In the event of the identity of the complainant being
disclosed, the Audit Committee is authorized to initiate appropriate action as per extant regulations against
the person of agency making such disclosure, The identity of the Whistle Blower, if known, shall remain
confidential to those persons directly involved in applving this policy, unless the issue requires investigation
by law enforcement agencies, in which case members of the orpanization are subject to subpoena,

10.4. Any other Cmployee assisting in the said investigation shall also be protected to the same extent as the
Whistle Blower.




105 Provided however that the complainant before making a complaint has reasonable belief that an issuc
cxists and he has acted in good faith, Any complaint not made in good faith as assessed as such by the Audit
Committee shall be viewed seriously and the complainant shall be subject to disciplinary action as per the
Rules / certified standing orders of the Company. This policy does not protect an employee from an adversc
action taken independent of hus disclosure of unethical and improper practice etc. unrelated to a disclosure
made pursnant to this policy.

11. ACCESS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

11 1. The Whistle Blower shall have right to access Chairman of the Audit Committee directly in
exceptional cases and the Chairman of the Audit Committee is authorized to preseribe suitable directions in
this regard.

12, COMMUNICATION
12.1. A whistle Blower policy cannol be effective unless it is properly communicated to cmployees.
Employces shall be informed through by publishing in notice board and the website of the company.

13. RETENTION OF DOCUMENTS

13.1. All Protected disclosures in writing or documented along with the results of Investigation relating
thereto, shall be retained by the Company {or a period of 7 {seven) years ot such other period as specified by
any other law in force, whichever is more.

14. ADMINISTRATION AND REVIEW OF THE POLICY

14.1. The Chairman & Managing Director shall be responsible for (he administration, interpretation,
application and revicw of this policy, The Chief Execulive Officer alse shall be empowered to bring about
necessary changes to this Policy, if required at any stage with the concurrence of the Audit Committee.

15, AMENDMENT

15.1. 'The Company reserves its right (o amend or modily this Policy in whole or in part, al any time withoul
assipning any reason whatsoever. However, no such amendment or modification will be binding on the
Cmployees and Directors unless the same is notified to them in writing



The Board of Directors
ALK. Spintex Limited
Bhilwara

We have reviewed the implementation of Corporate Governance procedurcs by (he company during the year
ended 317 March 2015 with the records uand documents maintained by the company furnished to us for our
review and the report on Corporate Govemance as approved by the Board of Directors.

The Company’s condilions of Corporate Govemance are the responsibility of the Management. Qur
examination is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

On the basis of the above and according to (he information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the
Company has complied in all material respects with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated n
Clauses 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange.

We lurther state that our exatnination of such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the manapement has concluded the affairs of the
Company.

FOR: O.P. DAD & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

[0.P. DAD]
PARTNER

PLACE: BHILWARA
DATED: 30'" MAY, 2015



CEQ/CTFO CERTIFICATION TO TIHE BOARD
(Under Clause 4%V) of Listing Agreement)

T the Board of Directors
AK.SPINTEX LTD.

il.

I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash Dow statement [or the vear 2014-15 and that to
the best of our knowledpge and beliel’

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Bank’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations:

There are, to the best of onr knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Hank during
the year 2014-15 which are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the Bank’s code of conduct;

We accept responsibility for cstablishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have
evaluated the effectivencss of the internal control sysiems of the Bank and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committes, deficiencies in the design or operation ot the internal control, it
any, ol which we are aware of and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee -

¢ Significant changes in internal control over the financial reporting during the year 2014-15;

o Sipnificant changes in accounting policies during the vear 2014-15 and that the same have becn
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

o Instances ol signilican! fraud ol which we have become aware and the involvement thercin, if
any, of the mm}agn.mcnt ar an employee having a significant role in the Bank’s internal control
systcim ov cw c1al reporting,

”“ﬁﬁf’ ALA% e-uqvq:é:f‘

(Dintesh Porwal) (Ashish Kumar Hagrm:ha]

CHIEF FINANCIATL OFTFICER COMPAMY SECRETARY

Place: Bhilwara

Date:

30.05.2015



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2014-158
{As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock Exchange)

1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company’'s philosophy has always been to attain the highest levels of transparency, fiumess,
commitment to values, accountability and equity, in all facts of its operations, and in all its inter-action
with its stakeholders. including shareholders, employees, govemment agencies and lenders. Tt always
believes that all its operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall
shareholder value, over a sustained period ol time, In addition o complying with the statutory
requirement, effective governance systems and practices towards improving (ransparency, disclosures,
internal controls and promotion of cthics al work-place have been institutionalized. Hence, adapting to the
SEBI recommended Corporate Governance practices were mostly an exercise on re-confinning existing
practices ol the Company except for some specific changes to meet the SEBI recommendations.

2 Board Composition and Particuiars of Director

(1} The Board of Directors of the company as on March 31, 2015 consisted of

¢ [xecutive Shri Prakash Chand Chhabra
Shri Tilok Chand Chhabra
Shri Sourabh Chhabra

» Non- Executive{Independent) Shri Sandeep hinger
Shri Praveen Kumar Kothari

Smit. Divya Rameshchandra kacchara

{ii)  Attendance at Board Meetings duning the year and last Annual General Meeting
7 Board Meeting of the Board were held during the year.
The dates on which the meeting held were as follows: 30™ May,2014, 5" August,2014, 25"
Scptember,2014, 12™ November,2014, 15" December,2014, 13" February 2015, and 21°
March, 2015.

The last Annual General Meeting was held on 30™ September 2015

| Name of Director | No. of Board Meeting attended | Whether attended Last AGM
Shri P, C. Chhabra | 7 Yes |
Shri'l', C, Chhabra | 6 Yes |
Shri Saurabh Chhabra | -8 Yes |

(ui) DISCLOSURE REGARDING REAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR
IMrector retining by rotation and secking re-appointmen
St Sourabh Chhabra, Son of Shri Tilok Chand Chhabra, aged 30 years, an Indian National,
residing  at B-382, Shastmi Nagar, DBhilwara-311001 He is Master of DBusiness
Administaration. e is having more than 5 vears experience in filed of Spinning, Treading
and Weaving Business.
Details of the Shri Sourabh Chhabra Directorship in other Indians Companies are as under

" Other Directorship S | Position held
. Acme Care International (P) Ltd. | Director




{1v)

Code Of Conduct
The Board lays down Code of Conduct for the Board Members and senior Management of
the company and is posted on the website of the company. The Board Members and Senior
Management personnel affirm compliance to the code of conduct,

3. Audil Committee

()

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

The Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted in line with provisions of
Clause 49 of the Listing Agrecment read with Section 177 and 149 (6) of the Companies
Act.2013.

The terms of reference of the Audit Comunitlee arc broadly as under:

To oversee the Company financial reporting process and the disciosure of s
linancial information and to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sullicient
and credible;
To hold periodic discussion with the Statutory Auditors of the company concerning
the accounts of the company, Intermal Control system, scope of audit and
observation of the Auditors,
To review compliance with internal control system;
To review the quarterly, half-ycarly and annual financial results of the Company
before submission to the Board;
To make recommendations o the Board on any matter relating Lo the financial
management of the company, including the Audit Report.
Recommending the appointment of statutory auditors fixation of their remuneration
To Review with the management the annual financial statements before subimission
to the board, focusing primarily on:

{a) Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(b) Major accounting entries bascd on exercise of judgment by

management;

(¢) Qualifications in draft audit report;

(d) Significant adjustments arising out of audit,

(e) Compliance with accounting standard:

(f) Compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning

financial slalements;

(g) Disclosure of any refated party transactions.
To conduct discussion with statutory auditors before the andit commences, about
the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any aren
CONCCE,
To conduct management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results
of operations,

The Audit Committee is usually held at the Corporate Office of the Company and are
usually arended by the Managing director, General Manager (Fmnancial) and
representatives of Statutory Auditory. 'The Operations [Teads are invited to the meetings.

The previous Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 30% September,

2013,

The composition of the Audit Commillee and particulars of meetings atlended by the
members of the Audit Committes are as below:



Name of Member Designation No. of Meetings attended during the year |
=l 2014-2015
Shri Sandeep hinger | Chairman | 4
Shri Praveen Kumar | Member 3
Kothan T
Shri Prakash Chand = Member 3
Chhabra
{wi} Four Audit committees meetings were held during 2014-2015, The dates on which the
said meetings were held are as follows: 25™ May 2014, 25" July 2014, 25" October 2014
and 25" January 2015,
4, Remuneration Committee
(1) Remuneration Commutlee 15 there o fomnulate and recommend (o the Board compensation |
remuneration structure for managing/whole time directors. Non-Executive directors arc at
present nod paid commission,
{ii) The following is the constitution of the committes:
Name of the Member Designation | Nature of Din:;:arsﬁip '
Shri Praveen Kumar Kothari Chairman Independent Director
Shri Sandeep Hinger Member Independent Director
shr Tilok Chand Chhabra | Member Non-Independent Director
Details of Remuneration paid to Managing Directors: -
(a) Executive / Whole - time Director
Details Managing Director Shri Prakash Chand Chhabra
Basic Salary 220,000 P.M. -
Perquisile NIL
Total 220,000 PM.
(iii)  The company currently does not have any stock oplion scheme.
fivd  None of the non-executive directors has any pecuniary relationship or transaction with the
Company,
5. Sharcholders/Investors’ Grievances Committes

(1)

The Company has constituted a Shareholders/Investor Grievance Committee of Directors to
Took into transtir and transmission of shares, issuc of duplicate sharc certificate consolidation
and subdivision of shares and investors prigvances. This committee particularly looks into the
myestor’s grievances and oversees lhe performance of in-hovse share department and to
ensure prompt and efficient investors® services.




(i) The following is the constitution of the committee:

Name of the Director Designation | Nature of Directorship ]
Shri Praveen Kumar Kothan Chairman Independent Director .
Shri_Saurabh Chhabra | Member Non-lndependent Director

| Smt Divya Rameshchandra Kachhara | Member Independent Director

6. GENERAL BODY MELETINGS

(i) Details of location and time of holding the last three AGMs.

Detail of Meeting | Date of Meeting | Time of Meeting | Venue of the Meeling

18" AGM-2012 26092012 AK. SPINTEX LIMITED
19" AGM-2012 | 30.09.2013 11:00 AM | 14 K.M. Stone, Chittorgarh
20™ AGM-2014 30.092014 Road Bilia Kalan, Bhilwara-

311001 ( RAL)

(iiy ~ During the financial year under review, no resolution have been passed by postal ballot
= DISCLOSURE

(i) During the under review, there were no materially sipnificant related party transaction with
your Company’s, promoter’s, the director or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives
etc, that may have potential conflict with the interest of your Company al larpe.

(ii)  Your company has complied with all the statory requirements comprised in the Listing
Agreement/Regulation/Guidelines/Rules of the Stock Dxchange/SEBLother statutory
authorities,

(iiiy  Thers were no instances of non-compliance by your Company nor have any penalfies,
sirictures been imposed by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority during the
Jast Tour year.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

'I'he unaudited /audited quarterly and half-yearly are sent to all the Stock Exchange, where the
shares of your Company are listed. The results are normally published in the “Damik Bhaskar/
Rajasthan Patrika and Nafa nuksan in Hindi and in at least one English newspaper. The annual
resulls are posted Lo all the sharcholders,




9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

- (i) Annual General Meeting
| Date & Time

30092014 & 11.00 A M.

Venug 14 K.M. Stone, Chitltorgarh Road, Bilia Kalan,
Bhilwara-311001 { Rajasthan)
(11) Financial Penod 17 April 2014 to 31" March 2015
{ii1) Date of Book Closure 29" September 2015 to 30™ September 2015
| (iv) Listing Fees N The listing fees for the financial year 2014-15 have been paid to

(V) Listing om Stock Exchange in India

both the Stock Exchange, where Your Company equity shares are
listed.

(1) Delhi Stock Exchange Limited

tit) Jaipur Stack Exchange Limired

| (vi) Financial Calendar for the period | First Quarterly Results By July 2014
April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015 Second Quarterly Results By October 2014
Third Quarterly Result By January 2015

Audited Results By May 2015

Tw.?i']'ﬁ.cg'iétcmd Office

14 K_M. Stong, Chittorgarh Road, Bilia Kalan,
Bhilwara-311001 { Rajasthan)

(vii) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31" March, 2015

(ix) Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2015

[ Categories | No, of Shares | % of issued Share Capital
Promoters 3286800 | 6532
Foreign Institutional Investors . Pl

 Financial Institution i B
Mutual Funds and UTI - ' -
Bodies Corporate 68650 | 1.364

| Foreign Companies - -
Nationalized and other banks - -

{ Public 1676300 331314

| Total 5031750 100.00

No. of Equity Shares held No. of Shareholders | % of Shareholders | No. of Shares held %% of Share |
holding |
“Up to 5000 y 577 ‘ 77.76 1,68 650 33557 |
5001 to 10000 66 8.89 45 800 9102 |
10001 to 20000 41 | 5.53 56,950 1.1318
20001 to 30000 16 2.16 41,350 8218
30001 to 40000 6 ! 0.81 21,950 4362
40001 to 50000 4 : 54 17.600 3498
50001 to 100000 6 ] (.81 42,250 - 08397
100001 1o above 26 3.50 46,37,000 921548 |
Total 742 14000 £0.31,750 100.00 |



ANNEXURE : 1 TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Statement containing particulars pursuant to the companies {disclosure of particulars in the reports of
Boeard of directors) rules, 1988,

LCONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Conservation of energy is very high priority area for the company. The efforts are continuing to examine
and implement fresh proposals for conservation of enerpy and minimize its use by regularly monitoring
Consumption and improved maintenance of the existing

gystem.

FORM "A"

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

A  POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION 31.03.2015
I ELECTRICITY
a  Purchase [Inits [In KWH] 57,69 564

Total Ainount [In Rupees]

3,71,75.573

Rate/Unit [In per KWH] 6.44

b Own Generation '

Through Digsel Generator [In KWH] 231,912
unit/ltrs in dicsel oil ' 3.19
cost [Rs/ unit] 18.60
2 _Coal, Lipnite Fire wood &Wooden Coal
Oty. |MT] 7.365.83
TOTAL COST [Rs] 6,49,55232
Average Rate 881845
CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF
B  PROINCTION
I'abric production [Mirs] 35511915
Clectricity [in Kwh] 0.169
Coal [in Kg] 0.207
FORM "RB"
A Resewrch & Development WIL
B Technology Absorption NIL
€ Foreign Exchange Eaming and Outgo NIL

PLACE: BIILWARA.
DATE: 30th May, 2015

31.03.2014

62.04.490 00
3.74.39.114.00

6,03

1,62.774
3.18
16.99

7.606.56
6.41,96.735
8,439.65

3,59.89,673.20
0.177
0.211

NIL
NIL
NIL

_— By order of the board

f G )8 Eng e
—— “[P.C. CHHABRA]

MANAGING IRECTOR|



O, P. DAD & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRST FLOOR, BALAJ COMPLEX
PUR ROAD,

BHILWARA -3 1001

Independent Auditor’s Repurt

T'o,

‘The Shareholders of
AK.SPINTEX LIMITED
Bhilwara

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of A, K.SPINTEX LIMITED (“the company”) which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the wear ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and olher explanatory information.

Management's Responsihility for the Financial Statements

The company Board of directors is responsibile for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companics Act 2013 (“the Act™) with respect
t the preparation of these tinancial stalements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Compuny in accordance with the Accounting principles venerally accepted in india including the Accounting Standards
referred Lo in Section |33 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Hule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004,  This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal control that were aperating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, relevant to the prepuration and presentation of the financial
slalements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

Aunditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is 1o cxpress an opinion on these standalone financial staterments based on our audit. We have taken into account the
prevision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under (he
provision of' the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducied our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Acl.. Those Standards
require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
tinancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, The
prosedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ciror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Coanpany’s preparation and fair presentation ol the financial statements in order to design audit precedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by manugement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We helieve that the audit evidence we ]::g;ﬁcﬁamad is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our audit opinion

@
o
|'. ‘




Opinion

In our opimion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
stalements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
wilh the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

{a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 51, 2015,
(b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit/ loss for the year ended on that date; and

i) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows Fr the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1, As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of Indiain lerms of
sub-section (11) Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a staternent oo the matters gpecified in puragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a). we have sought and oblamed all the information and explanations which tothe best of our knowledge and boliel were
necessary for the purpose of owr audit;

(b} in vur opinion, proper books of aceount as required by law have been kepl by the Company so far as appears from our
exarmnation of those books,

{c). the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account and records,

{d}. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial slalements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Acl,
reuct with Rule 7 of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable.

(e). on the basis of written representations received from the direclors as on March 31, 201 5 taken on record by the Board of Directors,
nome of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015, from beng appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,
aril

(F). with respect to the ather matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i Since the Central Government has not issued any notification as Lo the rate at which the cess is to be paid under sectiom 441 A of the
Companies Act, 1956 nor has it issued any Rules under the said section, prescribing the manner in which such cess is lo be paid, no
cess is due and payable by the Company.

ii. As the company has not declared any dividend in the past years & there is no unpaid dividend, so there is no requirement of Lranster
ol amount in Investor Bducation & Protection fund, (1LPF)

For: O. P. DAD & CO. £ % DAL
Chartcred Accountants /750 B o
iesn Reg, No, 002330C), /(5 / Vil
hnirnuh (8 "enan, )
(0P Hﬁ‘\ 3 ‘ /Jﬁ
P.DAD) e )
Partner \‘\‘S‘{H".’Ctﬂf?/
© M. No. 35373 —

Place: Bhilwara
Dated: 30.05.2015



ANNEXIRE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REFORT

(Referred to in paragraph | under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

On the basis of such checks of the hooks and records as we consider apprapriate and a5 per the information and explanations ziven to
us during the course of our audil, we further report that:-

i
" A

(B)

(A)
(B)
(C}
ii,
iv.
v
Vi,

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets on the basis of available information,

As explained 1o us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year in a phased periodic
tnunner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard 1o the size of the Company and nature of its assets, No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification

As explained to us, the inventorics have heen physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the vear,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedurss of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation 1o the Company and nature of ils business,

The Company has maintained proper records of inventories. As explained fo us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification of invenlary as compared to the book record.

According to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other partics listed in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companics Act, 2013 Hence clause (iii) (a) & (b) is not applicable 1o the company
as the company has not granted any such loans

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there is generally an adequate internal control
procedure commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventories &
fixed assets & for sale of goods and service During the course of our audit, no major instance of continuing failure to
correct any weakness in the internal control system has been noticed.

The companies has nol accepted any loans/deposits from public. in our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given Lo us the provision of section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2003 and the Rules framed there under,
wherever applicable, are being complied with, No order has been passed by company law board against the company,

As per information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records
under seetion 148 1) of the Companies Act for company’s products




Wil

g.  According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Prevident Fund, Emplovee State Insurance,
Income Tax, Wealth tax, Custom Duty, Sales Tax, Excise duty, VAT Cess and other statutory dues have been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in account of
any dispute other then the disputed statutory dues aggregaling to Rs. 110.53 Lac thal have not been deposited on account of matlers
pending before appropriate authorities are as under;

Namgufthe:mm ]“mmcﬁa[ ].re-ar o wl:uth Isature of the | Forum whm‘e dtspute is CoAmount
: - the matter pertains L dues pendmg : e
- Fied ey (Rs. inLac)
Textiles Cess Act 19972007 | TC Cess f'rmué Cess Tribunal, 46.26
|
Central Excise Act, 2002-2003 Excise Duty | Commissioner { Appeals) 544
1944 [
Entry Tax Act 2012-2015 Entry Tax Compaiy is dispuling & 5883
challenging the hLabilities
based on the lepal opimion
sought by the company.

. As the company has not declared any dividend in the past year & there is no unpaid dividend, so there is no requirement of
transfer of smount in Investor Education & Protection fimd  (TEPF).

Viii The Company does not have any accumulated losses and has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audit and n the immediately preceding financial year.

x Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanation given by the management, we are of the apinion
that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues w financial institution, Banks or debenture holders,

X In our opinion and according to the information and the explanation given to us, the company has not given any
guaraniee [or loans laken by others friom banks or financial institution.

X Based on our audit procedures and on the information & explanations given by the management, we report that the term
loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised,

X1 In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, we report that no material traud on or by the
company has heen noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management

FOR O. P. DAD & COMPANY
CHARTERED AC KJUNJ.M\I,&

Qipdova-

[OLP.DAD] r:,f ‘!I ol
PARTNER ul,mj | g )]
M.NO.35373 / 24
LN -\.\*‘_"
%Hi';ch ﬁ;l?
i

PLACE: BHILWARA
DATED: 30th MAY, 2015



BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31 March, 2015

NOTES
31.03.2015 231.03.2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital [1] 50,317,500.00 50,317, 500,00
Reserves & Surplus [2] 53,471,353.51 53,084, 79949
Share Application money pending alotment
103, 790,853.51 103,412,299.49
Long- | erm Bomowings [3] F1,978,227 .00 77,375, 184.00
" Deferred Tax Liabilities (MNet) [4] 15,005, 553.00 16,914,166.37
Othar Long Term Liabilities
B7.073,780.00 00, 2809,350.37
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short Term Borrowings 5] 776 565.00 76,633,668.00
Trade Payahle : [6] 76,867, 758.50 73.301,118.48
Cither Current Liabilites [71 £,943,180.00 5, 752,510.00
Short Term Prowvision 1B = —
167,619,500.50 155,687, 296.18
348,484,137.01 349,388,946.34
ASSETS
MNON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 2] 149,582 ,999.72 158,064,313.82
Intangible Assets =
Capltal Work In Progress - =
Non Current Investments (10} ©3,000.00 3,000,00
Long-Term loans and advances [1L] 11,114,225.84 12 443,552.84
160,700,225.56 171,401, 306.66
CURRENT ASSETS
Current Investments - %
Inventories [12] 44,874, 064.01 50,653, 22690
Trade Recievable [13] 593,456,179.68 23,467 420.70
Cash and Cash Equivalents [14] 26,369,891.91 27,055,268.78
Short-term nans & advances [15] 23,042, 775,85 16,811,717.22
187,783,911 .45 177,947, 639.69
348,454,137.01 345,3B6,948.35

AS PER AUDIT REPORT
For: O.P. DAD 8 CO.
CHARTER. !{:Cﬂu

%% ﬂm Py W
[0.F. DAD] s [P.C. CHHABRA] For : AK. SPINTEX LTEA
PARTNER . [MANAGING DIRECTOR] ASHISH KLMAR EP*GR EC

PLACE: BHILWARA (DIN NO. 00155631) :&qSLMY

A Dy =P — SN GOMPANY sEcRETAR*r

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE ECARD
A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED, BHILWARA

DATE: 30th May, 2015 [T.CCHHABRA ]
[DIRECTOR] For : A.K. SPINTEX LTD.
{DIN NO. 00L67401) DINESH P A -
J"_'r -

‘ffia?
CHIEF FINANC FFIGER
t'/’w



Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 315t March 2015

NOTES
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations [1&]
Other Income [17]
TOTAL REVENUE (1)
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed [18]
Purchase of Stock In trade [19]
Changes in inventories [20]
Manufacturing expenses [21]
Employes Benefit expenses [22]
Finance Cost [23]
Depreciation/Amortization expenses
Other expenses 124]

TOTAL EXPENSES (ii)

Profit before Tax (PBT) {i-ii)

W1} Exceptional [tems/Extranrdinary items.
VII) Profit before Tax (PBT) (V- VI)

WIIT} Tax expenses of continuing Qperagns
Current, Tax
MAT credit Entitlernent
Deferred Tax

Profit [ (loss) for the period from continuing operations
Profit / (loss) for the paeriod from discontinuing operatic
Profit / (loss) for the period (Profit After Tax )

Earning Per Share

[0.P. DAD] '1», pr=py
PARTNER [P.C. CHHABRA]
M. NO. : 035373 == [MAMNAGING DIRECTOR]
FRN ;- 0[{2330C

(DIN NO. 00155631)
=

“ermen TP

PLACE: BHILWARA
DATE: 30th MAY, 2015

[T.C.CHHABRA ]

[DIRECTOR]

{DIN NO. 00167401)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
441,019,827.08 305,503,201.06
534,238.00 715,337.00
442,454 065.98 396,308,628.06
130,921,260.47 105,076,244 46
461,368.86 {3,217,683.72)
153,660, 730.65 150,539,359.24
105,612,439.00 94,230,236.00
14,878,770.16 16,494,033.26
21,501,42648 16,582,920.52
12,174,691.00 11,507, 894 59
439,210,6806.62 391,213,004.35
3243379.36 5095623.71
3,243,379.36 5,005,623.71
3,841,618.00 1,039,856.00
= 1,670,604.00
{1,818,613.27) {1,880,306.72)
2,023,004.63 8'3 0,153.28
1,220,374.73 4,765,470.43
1,220.374.73 4 265 470.43
0.24 0.85

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
A K. SPINTEX LIMITED, BHILWARA

s ey &4

Far:AK. SPINTEX LT,
ASHISH KUMAR L

e

AGRERIAA

AF;L:\ E.g EAAELQ&T "1"1;;1—-"' >

=" COMPANY SECRETARY

For:AK. SPINTEXLTD.
DINESH P VWil
B

FICER.



A.K.SPINTEX LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31st March, 2015

P

Current Year |Previous Year
(A) |CASH FLOW STATEMENT FROM OPERATING 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax 3243379 50856249
Adjustments for :-
Depreciation 21501426 16582921
Interest Expenditure 17380219 18542065
Interest Income {323908) {654927)
Loss / profit (+/-) on sale of Fixed Assets 0 (4535)
Prelminary Expenses W/off 0 i
Adjustments for :-
Inventories 5,775,163 {566373)
Sundry Debtors (10028753)]  (16271272)
Loans and Advances (4902292) 4412192
Current liabilities 5787310 12984069
Less : Taxes Paid (Net of refund) (3841618) (2710460)
Cash Generated from Operations (A) 34594927 37409304
{B) |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (12571934) {22248309)
Increase in Capital W.I.P. 0 146893
Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 BE000
Interest Received ‘323908 654927
Preliminary addition 1] 0
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) (12648026)| (21380489)
{C) |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Proceeds from long term borrowing (2096427) (5324378)
Increase in bank borrowing for Working Capital (3855103) 76633668
Increase /(Repayment) of Unsecured loan 639470 (68420613)
increase in share capital/application maney 0 0
Subsicly Received 0 0
Interest Paid (17380219) {18542065)
| __|Net Cash From Financing Activities (C) (22632279)| (15653388)
(D) |Net Increase / Decrease in Cash & Cash (685378) 375427
Equivalent (A-B+C)
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 26369892 27055269
Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalent 27055269 26679842
This is the Cash flow statement referred For - ALK, SPINTEX L
to in our report of even date. -~ - For and on behalf of the Board ﬁSHIEH KUMAR BAGRE
For 0.P. DAD & ,;j"'_ 3 #N A.K.SPINTEX LIMITED E}i'ﬁ] ﬂnﬁl:
iﬁw C yera e CoNpANY SECHE
(0.P. DAD) [P.C. CHHABRA]
partner \_\q, Managing Directpe| : A K. SPINTEX LTI
M. No. 035373 % e DINES '@Em‘#
FRN 02236 el el & ,-"”Jf .
Place: Bhilwara [T.C.CHHABRA ] ¢ HIEF FHWL CrEi
DATE: 30th MAY, 2015 Director




NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2015

- SHAR A 21.03.2015 21.03.2014
Authorised Share Capital
1,00,00,000 EQUITY SHARES OF RS, 10/-EACH 100,000,000.00 100,000,000, 00
Issued Subscribed 8 Palg D LaDits
50,31,750 EQUITY SHARES OF RS. 10/- EACH ' 50,217,500.00 50,317,500.00
£0,317,500.00 50,317,500.00
Equity Shares 31,03.2015 31.03.2014
At the baginning of the Period 5,031,750 5,031,750
Add:- Issued during the Period - -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 5,031,750 5,031,750

B. The Company has only one Class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares

c. Shareholders Holding More than 5% Shares in total Equity share capital

S.No. Name of the shareholder 31.03.2015 21,03,.2014

% of % of
Mo. of Shares Shareholding Mo. of Shares Shareholding
1 Fashion Suitings Private Liimited 2,135,250 42.44% 2,135,250 42,4405
2 T.C. Chhabra 9,.04% 454,800 9.04%
3 Saroj Devi Chhabra B.76% 441,000 8.76%
4 Saurabh Chhabra 5.08% 255,750 5.08%




NOTE 2 - RESERVE AND SURPLUS

Inw Subsid
Balance as per last financial statements
Add: Dunng the yesar
Closing Balance

* Profit & Loss Account

Balance as per last financial statements

Profit for Le year

Less:- Retained carning adjusted

Net Surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss

Total Reserve and Surplus

NOTE 3 - LONG

A) Sec from Ban FI's
1} Bupee Term Loan

Z)Finance lease ohiigation, Fouipments/Vehicle Loans
from HIZFC Bank

Net Amount (A)

B ured
I} Tntercorporate. Loan
Diractors *

Total Amount (A + B)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
1,500,000.00 1,503, (1000000
1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00
51,594,799.49 47,379,329.06
1,220,374.73 4,265,443
841,820.71 [ D
51,873,353.51 51,594,799.49
53,473,353.51 53,094,799.49
31.03.2015 131.03.2014
10,864,595,00 15,883, 548,00
3,089,632.00 167,106.00
' 13854227.00 16050654.00
2 Sl (36,00
58, 024,000.00 56,779,484.00
71,978,227 73,375,184

a5 unsacurad Laan taken froen directors only | henee, outsids the purisw of the defintion ol deposibs ufs 2 sub clause 31 of Companies Acr, 7013,

L} Financial lease obligation, Equiperent and vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of respective assets,

ils of i Co

Nature
of Loan

MName of
Bank

Year of
S.No

Sanction|Qfs Amount

Instalimeants amount

Terms of Repayment

AXIS

HANK 2009-10

Loan

15852595.00

1247 Lacs per Quarter

The: term loans Is
secured by first charge
of exsting fixed assets
(to the extent of asscts
fianned by Axis Bank
agalnst this kaan) of the
cmpany and akso
persunally guaranted by
director, Also Secured by
an FD of Fs. 26000000

JCalnaland 5 FLs

/[‘;;9” = .:’
I( Clv :";




NOTE 4 - DEFERRED TAX LIABIITIES (NET)

1.03.201 31.03.2014
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15,095,553.00 16,914,166.37

15,095,553.00 16,914,166.37

. NOTE 5 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
31.03,2015 31.03.2014
A) FROM BANKS
SECURED
Cash credit fimit 72,778,565.00 76,633,668.00

72,778,565.00 76,633,668.00

{ Cash Credit/OD limit account taken from UCO Bank is secured by hypothecation of stocks and book
debts both present and future of the company and also by extension of First charge over fixed assets
of the company.)

E G- TRA
31.03.2015 31,03.2014
Sundry creditors for Raw matenal/ Trade 60,345,612.00 53,093,229.00
Sundry creditors of capital goods . 1,346,353.00
Other Qutstanding liabilities 16,522,146.50 18,861,536.48

76,867,758.50 73,301,118.48
*The balance outstanding with sundry creditors either debit or credit are sibject to confirmation and reconcliia

7 - R 5
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Current maturities of Long Term Dehts 7.382,468.00 5,219,840,00
Tax deducted at source Payable 358,203.00 332,801.00
E.S.L & P.F, Payable 232,508.00 1949 369.00

——

£

& !::'c“,"-“an 7,973,180.00 5,752,510.00




- TTE M

3.2015 31,03.2014
- N M
31.03,2015 31.03.
N.S.C. 3.000.00 3,000.00
3,000.00 3,000.00
11 - L MDD
31.03,2015 03.20
A} Security Deposits
Government Deptt. §,378.725.36 8,386,426.36

R.5.E.B. Deposit & others 2,735,500.48 4,057,566.48

B} Cenvat Receivable on Capital Goods = 7

C) Loans And Advances To Related Partles - e
11,114,225.84 12,443,992.84

The halance outstanding of loan and advances either deblt or credit are subject to confirmation and reconciliat

NOTE 12 - INVENTORTES

(AS taken valued & cerlified by the management) 31.03.201 31.03.2014
A) Raw Malerial (Dyes & Chemical) §,090,939.83 10,140,918.30
B) Work-In-Progress 2,444 201.65 3,389 548.90
) Finish Fabrics 29,897 406.45 29,413,428.06
D) Stores & Spares 7.441,516.08 7,709,331.73

44,874,064.01 50,653,226.99
A. All the above Inventories have been valued at Cost or Mel realisable value whichever is lower,
B. WIP & Finish Fabrics Stock valued to the extent of processing cost involved
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NOTE 13 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

31.03.2013 21.03.2013
A) Trade Receivables Culstanding for mare Lhan six months
Unsecured, Considered Good 1,655,174.01 1,796,084.02
B) Trade Receivables 91,841,005.67 81,671,342.68

Linsecured, Considered Good

) Balance with Related Partles - -

93,496,175.63 83,45?,326.?0

The balance cutstanding with sundry debtors elther debit or credit are subject to conflrmation and
recondciliakion

14 - H AN
21,03.2025 21.03.2034
A) Balances with Banks 179,167.91 831,611.78
B} Cash on Hand 190,724.00 163,457.00
3) Fixed Deposit With Bank {Exceeding 1 year) 26,000,000.00 26,000,000.00

26,369,891.91 27,055,268.78
Fixed Deposit with the bank is mortgaged against the outstanding term loan from Axis Bank.

NOTE 15 - SHORT TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES

31.03,2015 21.03.2014
Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value o be recejy 4. 717,B89.00 2,585,693.37
TDS Recewvable 18,325,886.85 13,043,614.85
MAT Credil Receivable - E
Advance against capital goods 1,182, 400.00

23,043,775.85 16,811,717.22

OTE 16 - REVEN M
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Sale of Services
Fabric Processing 441,919,827.98 395,593,291.06

441,919,627.98 395,593,291.06

Rebates, claims and discount etc on sales are accounted for and being provided for as and when settled with
Lhe parbies as per consistent policy adopted by the Company every year
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31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Interest received 323,908.00 654,927.00
Scrap/ Fent regs sale 210,330.00 55,875.00
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets ) - 4,535.00
534,238.00 715,337.00
* NOTE 18 - COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
03,2015 31.03.2014
Opening Stock 10,140,918.30 11,059 378.76
Purchases 125,571,282.00 104,157,784.00
Less: Closing Stock ~ 5,090,939.83 10,140,918.30
130,921,260.47 105,076, 244 46
19 - KINTR
31.03. 31.03.2014
Stock in trade purchase - 2
- CHAN wip :
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 29413,428.06 26,724,165.69
Work in Progress 3,389,548.90 2,861,127.55
32,802,076.96  29,585,293.24
Less : Closing Stock
Finished Goods 29,897 406.45 29,413,428.06
Waork in Progress 2444 701.65 3,389,548.90
32,341,608.10 32,802,576.96
DAL 461,368.86 (3,217,683.72)
A G



3= PE

Stores & Spares consumed

Coal

Power & Fuel

Cther manufactuning expenses

Entry Tax

Servica Tax

Repair & Maintainence [ PAM ]

Water charges & air polluction Charges

E 22 - EMPL PEN

Salary, Wages & Other Allowances
E.5.1.& P.F. contribution

Gratuity & P.L.Encashment

Stalf & Labour Welfare Expensas
Bonus & exgratia

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
35,938,54B.76 36,439,280.17
64,955,183.90 £4,196,735.19
41,527,627.99 40,326,175.58

1,965,453.00 1,530,091.00
1,938,324.00 1,992,642.00

319,625.00 295,050.00

4,720,138.00 3,871,411.00
2,295,830.00 1,887,974.00
153,660,730.65  150,539,359.24

31.03.2015 31,03.2014

100,778,702.00 90,200,062.00
3,668,009.00 2,690,253.00

430,721.00 455,903.00

170,246.00 159,183.00

564,761.00 524,835.00

105,612,439.00  94,230,236.00

“The company is accounting leave encashment on mercantile! actual basls, However gratuity has baen

accounted by way of acluarial valuation and due provision has been made in the books in currant year
“There 1s no expenditure incurrad on employees who were in recai pt of remuneration in the aggregate ol not

less than Re. 48,00,000/- p.a, if employed through out the year and Rs. 4,00 000/~ per menth for a part of tha

year.

NOTE 23 - FINANCE COSTS

Bank charges

Interest on Term Loan
Interest on Working Capital
Intzrest on Others

Less:- Interest received on Fixed deposit

31,03.2015 31.03.2014

118,092 16 252,811.26
1,776,285.00 2,057,588.00
8,766,995.00 2,259 851,00
6,836,939.00 14,774, 626,00
£,619,541.00 2,300,843.00

. 14,878,770.16 16,494,033.26



NOTE 24 - OTHER EXPENSES
A) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Audit exp.

Auditor Remuneration
Chanty & donation
Canveyance expenses
Intemal Audit Fes
Energy Audit & exp.
Fees & subscription
Insurance

Legal & Professional exp.
Listing Fees

M.D. Rermuneration
Miscellaneous expenses
Postage Exp.

Printing & Stalionery
Public Walfair exp.

Rent, Rates & Taxes
Repair B Maintenance ( Vehicle )
Telephone expenses
Travelling Expenses
Water Cess

B) SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Arvertisemeant

Freight, Checking Loading & Unloading Charges

Audit fees & consultancy
Tax audit fees
Certification & Consultancy

31.03,2015 31.03,2014
37,450,00 4,450.00
70,000.00 60,000.00

109,500,00 69,600.00

540,809.00 488,102.00

191,000.00 0.00

268,540.00 295,540.00

555,803.00 92,305.00

235,318.00 242,726.33

1,132,917.00 1,111,792.00
0.00 34,626.00
2,520,000.00 2,400,000.00

191,228.00 270,551.26
26,066.00 28,876.00

487,784.00 468,102.00
33,310,00 222,771.00

127,500.00 161,400.00

149,811,00 96,553.00

183,911.00 216,095.00
51,982.00 63,757.00

279,745.00 148,910.00

7,192,674.00 6,476,156.59

31.03.2015 21.03.2014
83,741.00 99,471.00

4,898,276.00 4,932,267.00
4,982,017.00 5,031,738.00

12 174,691.00

11,507,894,59

40,000.00
12,500.00
17,500.00
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35,000.00
12,500.00
12,500.00



; NOTE-25 - A. K. SPINTEX LIMITED is public limited company incorporated under companies Act 2013, Company is mainly
engaged in processing of grey fabric.

_ NOTE 26 EARNING PER SHARE

As per accounting Standard -20"Eaming per Share” issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountant of India the particulars of

" . EPS for aguity Share holders are as balow:

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Net Profit after taxes for equity shareholders 1220 4266
| Nurmber of Equity Shéres outstanding 5031750 | 5031750
i Weighted averags number of Equity Shares outstanding 5031750 5031750
| Basic Earning Per Share 0.24 0.85
\iﬁd Earning Per Share 0.24 || .85

NOTE 27 — MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Details of Remuneration paid to directors as undar -

PARTICULAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
[Amount in Rs.] [Amount in Rs.]
Directors’ Salary 2520000 24,00,000

NOTE 28 - _('_.:QNTINQENT LIABILITIES

1.

The Textile Cess Committee has raised a demand of Rs.46.26 Lacs against the company. The Company has filed
various appeal against it before Hon'ble TC Appeliate Tribunal, Mumbai. The Company has not received any
communication from the tribunal and as per our information and belief the matter is still pending with TC Cess
Appellent Tribunal. Mumbai and conseguently, liability, if any arises will be accounted for as and when the case will
be decided. The management being confident of winning the case, no provision of the above has been made.

The Company has deposited Rs. B2246/- under protest towards demand confirmed by the order of Commissioner of
Excise in Case No IV(554/45/BHL/R-IV/04/6587 Dated 18.08.2004, Company has filed the appeal in CESTAT,

Hor'ble CESTAT Vide it,s Final Ordar No, 493-495/08 CEx Dated 18 07 2008 reduced the penalty and accordingly
we have filed the refund of excess penally deposited by us. The department has sanctioned a sum of Rs, 114093 /.
on 27.02 2009 towards exeess penally deposited by us. The department preferred an eppeal with the Rajasthan
High Court and matter is pending with High Court,

Hon'ble Rajasthan High Court in Central Excise Appeal No. 34/2007 * Union of India Vs, A K Spintex Lld. & Anr”
Has decided the case in our favour, Tha Department has filad SLP with Hon'ble Suprema Court of India vide SLP
{Civil) Na. 25055 of 2009,

During the year, the company has settled the entry tax liability with the government under Amnasty scheme ol
Rajasthan government for period up to 21.03.2012, mainly to take advantage of waiver in interest, penalties |, undue
litigation and to buy peace. Despite accepting the scheme, the management continues to take view that entry tax is
not leviable on the company fg;ﬁgjamaﬂqu also and has filed stay petition with Hon. Rajasthan High court for FY
201213, As the managem ted-this leviability of entry tax law itself, hence, no provision of the antry tax
has been made in books o unts for FY. @12 -2015, as it 1s of contingent nature in managsement opinion. The
sntry tax iability is account nqt}‘lal basm at the time nf paymeant.
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NOTE 29 - TAXES ON INCOME
The Breakup of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities as on 31-2-2015 i3 as under;

[Rs.in Lacs]
Deferrad Tax Calculation Liability - 013-201
Opening balance 16,914,166 18,794,473
Add: Tax Arising on account of Current Year Depreciation (1,818 E13.37) (1,880,308)
Closing Balance 15,095,552 16,914,166
MOTE 30 — RELATED PARTY DISCL RE:
The company is having following related parties as defined under AS-18 issuad by ICAIL
Q. The Co. is dealing with following related parties as defined under AS-18 issued by the ICAL

Key Management Personnel ahri Prekash Chand Chhabra (Managing Director)

Shri Saurabh Chhabra [Director)

Relative of Key Management Personnel - Smt. Saroj Devi Chhabra (Wife of Directar)

Shri Tilek Chand Saurabh Chhabra HUF {Relative of director)

Sister! Associate concerns Fashion Suitings Pyt Ltd

B. Detail of transactions made with above parties during the year 2014-2015
e T e o H b b

Particulars Key Management ‘Relative of KMP - Associate /

AR iy Personnel | = -~ : Sister Concerns.

: o | 2014150 2013-14 | 201415 2013-14| 2014-16 1  2013-14
Income from services (Processing 0.00 | 000} 000 oo | 1127 15.38
charges received) e | e :
Balance Outstanding as on 31° : I ’ :
March Debtors afc 000 | 0.00 : 0.00 (-)0.03 (-10.94
| =3 3
Payment :- Salary 2520 2400 . 000 0.00 - Doo 000
| Interest on Unsecured Loan 4400 9.21 ‘ L2204 ! 10.58 000 0.00

NOTE 31 — IMPORTED AND INDIGENEOUS RAW MATERIAL, COMPONENTS AND SPARE PARTS CONSUMED

% Total Value | % Total Value
Consumption Consumption
Particulars Current Year Current Year Previous Year | Previous Yea
Raw Material
Imported = % 0.00 % .00
Indigenously oblained 100% 130921260 47 100% | 105076244 46
T [
Spare Parts
Imported A 0.00 0% Q.00
Indigenously cbiained 35838548.76 100% 643928017



. NOTE 32 - DUES TO MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENT ERPRISES

" The Government of India has promulgated an act namely “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006
which comes into force with effect from October, 2 2006 As per The Act. the Company is required to identify the Micro & Smal

- Enterprises & Pay them interest on overdus beyond the specified period imespective of the terms agreed with the enterprises
The Company has initiated the process of identification of such suppliers, In view of number of supplier & no receipt of critical
inputs & rasponse from several such potential parties, the liability of interest cannot be reliable estimates nor can required
disclosure be mada. Accourting in this regard will be caried out after process is complete and reliable estimate can be mads.
Since the Company is regular in making payments ta all suppliars, the Mmanagemant does not anticipate any significant interest
liability.

NOTE 33 - PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

The figures for Previous year have been re-grouped, re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary to make them
comparable with the current year's figure.

NOTE 34 - SEGMENT RTIN
As the company's significant business activity falls within a single primary business segment viz. "Processing of Fabrics”, the
disclosure requirement of accounting Standard-17 “Segment reporting’, issuad by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

NOTE 35 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

1. Method of Accounting

The accounts have been prepared as per historical cost convention and on an acecrual basis. Accounting policies not
specifically referred to otherwisa be consistent and in consonance with generally accepted accounting principles followed by
the company. :

2. Fixed Assets

a) Fixed assets ara stated at their original cost (net of CENVAT) including incidental expenditure related to acquisition and
Installation less accumulated depreciation,

b) Capital assets under erection / installation are reflectad in the balance sheet ag capital work-in-progress.

3. Depreciation

a. Depreciation is provided on straight line methad based on useful lives of assets as prescribed under the transitional
provisions of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 on pro-rata basis. As the Schedule || comes into effect from 1 April 2014,
the carrying amount of the assels as on that date have been depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset after
retaining the residual value, as prascribed by the relevant schedule. Reassessment of useful life of certain assets, where
evar done, is based on the external technical advice taken by the company,

B Company have a policy to fully depraciate assets upto Rs.5000/- in the yaar of acquisition. Hance the assets casting less
than Rs.5000/- have been fully deprociated in the year of acquisition

4. Investment.
Investments are stated at cost,

5. Revenue Recognition / Basis of accounting
The company follows the accrual s stem of accounting except certain items like interest, rebates. discounts & claims on
sales. insurance claims stc are ?ﬁa_@ and when there is reasonable certainty,
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6. Inventories
Inventories are valued as under.

Finished Goods : At Cost or market realisable value, whichever is lower.
Work in Progress : At Cost inclusive of allocable overheads
Dyes & Chemical, Stores & Spares ste : At lower of cost or net realisabla value.

7. Job Processing Income
Job Procsssing Income is stated at net of discount.

8. Retirement Benefits
Company’s contribution accruing during the year in respect of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme ha
been charged to Profit & Loss Account.

Encashment of leave is accounted on Accrual Basis

‘Liability in respect of employess’ gratuity is valued on actuarial basis made by the Life Insurance Corporation of India unde
emplayees’ group gratuity scheme. Any shortfall or excess based on such valuation is accounted for.

9. Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of the qualifying assets are capitalized as part of th
cost of such assets. A gualifying asset is one that necassarily takes substantial period of time to gel ready for intended use
All other barrowing costs are charged to revenue

10. Segment Reporting

The company's main operation relates to the processing of man made fabrics and has only one unit i.e. process house whick
s located at Bhilwara (Raj) and most of the customers are local. Hence the company does not have any other segmeant tt
disclose separately.

11. Relatad Party
Related party transactions as required under AS- 18 issued by the ICAl are disclosed by way of notes to the  accounts.

12. Earning Per Share (EPS)
EPS is calculated as per AS-20 issuad by the Institute Of Chartered Accountants OF India.

13. Deferred tax

Provision for current tax is made aftar taking into consideration admissible benefits under the provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from timing differance between book profits and taxable profits is accounted for using the
tax laws and rates that have besn or substantively enacted as on the Balance-Sheet date Defsmred tax asset is racognized
and carried forward to the extent there is a reasonabla certainty that the assats will be realizad in future,

14. Impairment of Assets

Factors giving rise to any indication of any impairment of the carrying amount of the company s assels are appraised at cach
balance sheet date to determine and providefrevert an impairment |oss following accounting standard AS-28 for impairmant
of assets,

15 Contingent Liabilifies.
Contingent Liabilities disclosed by way of notes.

ForO.P.DAD&CO. - - FOR & ON BEHALF OF A.K. SPINTEX LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ORI I
- 6B.baD) (|2 [ &y, or | a | [P. C. CHHABRA]
PARTNER 1% R4 | ol MANAGING DIRECTOR
& -w_,a--{f:i‘-*;}’ {DIN NO, 00155631)
PLACE: BHIL oA

DATED: 30.05.2016———



PROXY FORM
FORM MGT- 11
FPursusnt Io seciion 10306) of the Compunies Act, 2003 and rule 1913 haf the Compatiies {Muugeanenl end Administration) Rules, 2014/
Name : A K. SPINTEX LIMITED
CIN © LIT17RIT994PLCOR916
Regd office . 14 K M, STONE, CHITTOR ROAD
BILY A KALAN, MILWARA-311001 (Ra )

Name of the member (s)
Registered address
P-mail Id

Folio No/ Client 1d

[P ID

"W, being the member {syof ... <. shares of the above numed company, hereby appoint

1. Mame :

Address

E-rmail 1d z

Siongture or Fuling lim
2. Mame :

Address

E-imail Id

Signature b i or failing im
3 Name z

Address

F-mail Id

Signalure T
a3 myv/our proxy Lo attend and vote on a poll for me‘us and on myiour bechall at the 21" Anmm] General Meeling of the Company,
lo be held on the 30™ September, 2015 at the Registered Office at 14 K.M. Stone, Chillor road, Niliva Kalan, Bhilwara-311001 at
11,00 P.M. and al any adjournmeni thereol in respect ol such resolutions as are indicaiad bedow

Rusolutions

1. Cuonsider and adopt Audited Finuneial Statement, reports of the Board of dircetors and Anditor for the
veur ended 31" March, 2015,
2, Reappuiniment of Mr. Sourabh Chhwbra who i= liable 1o retire by rolation being eligible offes herself |
for re-appointment.

3. | Ratification for appointment of Auditor for the Financial Year 2015-16 and fixing their remuneration

Sigmed ths ... davof ... 2015
Signalure of shareholder

Sigmature of Proxy holden(s)
Note: This form of proxy in order w be effective should be duly completed and depostted at the Repisterad Office of the
Company. not less than 48 hours hefore the commencement of the Meeting,

ATTENDENCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the 217 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30™ September, 2015 at 11.00
am at 14™ K. M Mile Stone Chittor Crarh Road, Bilia Kalan  Bhilwara,

Full Name of the Shareholder {in Block Letters)
Folio Mo, _ Mo. of Shares held Name of Proxy (if the Proxy attends, instead of the
Shareholder) :

Signature of Shareholder / Prosy

Members allending the meeting must fill in this attendance slip and hand it aver at the entrance of he meet; ng hiall,
Members are requested to bring their copy of the annual report at the meeti ng.




